
Annual Report 2022



2     2022 ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     

EASTERN SUBURBS FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Dear Member Clubs, Directors and Life Members;

 

Pursuant to Sections 21 and 23 of the Constitution of the Eastern Suburbs Football Association Incorporated, notice 
is hereby given for the Annual General Meeting [AGM] of the Eastern Suburbs Football Association Incorporated:

DATE:  Tuesday 22 November 2022

VENUE: The Juniors Maroubra, Palm Room Level 1 

TIME:  7:00pm

The order of business at the Annual General Meeting shall be: 

1. Welcome and Apologies.

2. The reading and adoption of the Minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting.

3. Consideration and adoption of the Annual Reports and Financial Statements.

4. Election of officials for following year. 
 1.   Election of directors 
 2.  Election of members of the Hall of Fame or Life Membership (if any)

5. Consideration of any motion of which due notice has been given.

6. Award of the Ted Simmons Junior Football Medal.

7. ESFA Operational Update.

8. Close of meeting.

Regards,

Bill Kostandas
General Manager, Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.  



“Some of the major strategic decisions that we enacted of the 
past couple of years have provided some real-life efficiencies to 
participants, administrators, and the ESFA Competitions team. We 
remain focused as a Board to continue the evolution of ESFA and if 
anything, we will double down on our efforts”
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CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT

“Come dance with me, baby, in the […] rain” 

I have access to such a diverse of dedicated, forward-
thinking, and importantly, empathetic group to drive the 
strategy of the Association forward. I appreciate their 
constructive feedback and ability to cut through to the 
crux of issues. I truly appreciate their efforts and I’m 
excited to see the contributions of our newcomers of 
the coming months and years. 

Like most teenage boys of a certain vintage, I had 
a passing attraction to Belinda Carlisle. Never did I 
imagine that some some 30 odd years later, her song 
about weather patterns would hold so true and effect 
the operations of Football within NSW. And rain it did. 
I’ll delve deeper into the impact this had on our season 
elsewhere, but after 2 affected seasons, it felt that we 
couldn’t take a trip this season. But we persevered, and 
I’m immensely proud of the tenacity and cooperation 
that all of the football ecosystem in ESFA showed in 
finding a path forward. That we were one of the very 
few Associations that delivered a full season (on-time), 
illustrates the power of what can be achieved when we 
all work together.

I’d like to start by acknowledging the support afforded 
to ESFA by our Patrons, Matt Thistlethwaite, Tanya 
Plibersek, Dr Marjorie O’Neil, Ron Hoenig, Michael 
Daley, Dylan Parker, Paula Masselos, Susan Wynne and 
the administration and fields teams of the respective 
Local Government authorities that we operate within, 
Randwick City Council, Bayside Council, Waverley 
Council, Woollahra Council, Moore Park and Centennial 
Parklands Trust, and City of Sydney Council. That we 
were able to able to play a full season is testament to 
the high-quality facilities that we are afforded here 
in the Eastern Suburbs and the community minded 
approach that all our LGAs took in ensuring that our 
participants were able to get on a park where possible.

I’d also like to acknowledge the contributions of my 
Board this season. I’m constantly pinching myself that 

The ESFA team, led by Bill, continue to amaze me with 
their efforts. There’s no such thing as a normal week in 
sports administration and the continuously changing 
demands from stakeholders, and challenges provided by 
external factors (ie weather, COVID etc) can make BAU 
operation difficult at times. But the way the team rise to 
the effort and going above and beyond (no one wants to be 
waking up at 6am on a Saturday and Sunday rescheduling 
games after dealing with late registration of a player at 
11:34pm on Friday night). Greg, Caroline, and Dwayne have 
created good structures this season and I look forward to 
seeing the fruits of their labours next season in a more 
normal season. Where they excel is in the ‘grey’, and whilst 
I periodically receive feedback about decisions that are 
made, I must say that on the balance of outcomes – the 
team consistently get the job done and make the right 
call. Jaime has continued to make great strides forward 
in Coach education and we’ve seen some great initiatives 
this year. I’m particularly excited to see the benefits of the 
work he has done on the syllabus and the introduction 
of our Centre for Excellence next season. The Sydney FC 
partnership led by Sarah continues to flourish and we’ve 
been able to attract some very good participation numbers 
at our clinics – and nothing beats the smile on a kids face 
as they meet their heroes and do a lap of the field at a 
Sydney FC home game. Lastly, Rio has added some great 
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social media presence that our participants and Clubs 
have engaged with. 

I’d like to call out Bill’s contribution to the Association 
as he leaves us to relocate Perth. Bill’s tenure at ESFA 
has been afflicted with much personal, and professional 
turmoil but he has always kept his sense of humour, and 
fiery sense of what is right and wrong. I believe ESFA is 
in better shape for his service, and I’m sad to see him go 
- though I’m sure he won’t miss my rambling phone calls 
at all hours of the day and night!

The above is not to say that there aren’t areas where 
we can improve to better service our membership and 
we have a razor like focus on addressing certain areas 
moving forward. I’d like to thank the leadership from our 
Clubs in providing feedback over the year via various 
forums. As a general comment, the interests of our 
Clubs are varied and service numerous elements of our 
Community (as it should), and at times we can’t make 
decisions that meet everyone’s wants – sometimes 
someone has to lose in a binary decision – but the 
mantra that we have instilled is that decisions need to 
be consistent and considerate of all the facts (which 
sometimes may not be apparent to all parties), and the 
operating laws that guide the Association.

In referencing Club leadership, I would also like to thank 
all the volunteers and administrators that exist within 
the ESFA eco-system. This season especially was trying 
(as were the last 2), and I know for a fact that many 
administrators and RTOs were at wits end dealing with 
games reschedules etc. But the fact we were able to 
deliver a full season is testament to the hard work 
you all put in. Whilst it’s at times a thankless task, I’m 
sure all the smiles that I saw on playing fields made it 
worthwhile.

Many congratulations should go to Denys Antonov and 
the Referee Branch Committee for the improvements 
that we’ve seen across the branch. For a number 

of years, the ESFARB has been one of the ‘burning 
platforms’ within the Association, and Denys and team 
have rolled up their sleeves and we’re starting to see 
some tangible results. Still work to do, but we’re seeing 
some pleasing steps in the right direction.

In closing, I believe we’ve seen continued improvements 
this year with the restructuring of various guiding 
mechanisms of the Association and I feel enthused that 
the strategic plan that we’ve established is well in hand. 
Some of the major strategic decisions that we enacted 
of the past couple of years have provided some real-
life efficiencies to participants, administrators, and the 
ESFA Competitions team. We remain focused as a Board 
to continue the evolution of ESFA and if anything, we 
will double down on our efforts.

However, in order to achieve real progress, the 
Association needs to bind together and work 
collaboratively. Whilst I understand the tribalism of 
sport and the want to win, at certain times we need to 
take a step back and ask ourselves what is the right 
thing to do for the game of Football in the Eastern 
Suburbs of Sydney? We have an opportunity with the 
Women’s World Cup to gain further traction in the game 
and pick up additional participants and profile relative 
to other sports. If we all move the same direction (albeit 
sometimes on parallel tracks), there’s no reason that we 
can’t all succeed.

See you on the parks.

 

Nigel Singh
ESFA Chairperson



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

With our Competitions team, they play an extremely 
important role in delivering our core product. The 
diligence, the drive and the significant output provided 
by Greg, Caroline and Dwayne was a big factor in us 
delivering a season of Football in this challenging year. 
Their focus was to deliver a great experience for all. The 
number of hours spent on the weekends was enormous 
and they as a team worked well together. Caroline’s 
juggling of fixtures, Dwayne getting referees appointed 
to games and Greg working with them showed not only 
did they do their respective jobs well, but they cared.  

This season also saw the Juniors having their first finals 
series since 2019 and the Seniors since 2020. These 

The good news is, that unlike some Associations, ESFA 
managed to get a season of Football in, which included a 
finals’ series. In short this would not have been possible 
had it not been a collaborative approach between ESFA 
Office staff, ESFA Board, Club Representatives, Referees, 
Coaches, Players, Councils, and many others. From an 
ESFA Office perspective Head of Competitions Greg 
Storey, Competitions Manager Caroline Oakes-Ash and 
Match Review Officer Dwayne Leverett showed great 
resilience, did a mountain of work rescheduling fixtures, 
allocating and reallocating referees, sometimes booking 
grounds. There were stressful times, but the satisfaction 
of getting people onto the park was extremely important 
to them. The Clubs working together as well was equally 
good. As stated earlier, collaboration was a key as well 
as thinking ahead at times. 

Thus far my time at ESFA has been interesting. Season 2019 went well. Seasons 2020 
and 2021 were impacted by COVID-19. Season 2022 the rains came, and they kept on 
coming.  

days were so gratifying. Players were grateful and the 
games were exciting and of a good standard. The best 
thing for me were the smiles on people’s faces. Team 
Captain’s saying thank you to many during their after 
Grand Final speeches. That makes it so worthwhile for 
all concerned, especially our Club volunteers. One of 
the best things about Football is that it is so welcoming 
and so inclusive, and many people both on and off the 
field experience the many positive aspects that a game 
Football delivers. 

Facilities are a clear burning issue. This season with 
all the rain we have had there clearly needs to be 
some significant investment made on pitches as well 
as amenities, both new and current. To do this, all four 
levels of Football in this country need to work together 
and work together with all three levels of Government. 
Also, within the ESFA boundary there needs to be more 
space made available for us to grow the game. ESFA 
Chairperson Nigel Singh as has done a mountain of work 
in this area as have Club Committees, but they need 
help from up higher in the Football food chain. 

In saying that we did have a big win with the motion 
being approved by Randwick City Councillors for the 
upgrade of Heffron 46. Nigel’s great drive and hard 
work was rewarded, and Football in the Eastern Suburbs 
will derive great benefit once this initiative is completed. 
The involvement of a couple of Clubs in this is much 
appreciated as well.

WWW.ESFA.COM.AU     7



8     2022 ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     

the year. As a coach she is has been an integral part of 
ESFA’s development programs. I wish Rio all the best as 
she will be moving to the Gold Coast at the end of the 
year.

The School Holiday Clinics, Skills Program and School 
visits run in partnership with Sydney FC continue to 
foster. Fan Development Officer Sarah Ferris has done 
a great job and will continue to grow all programs. This 
is a good channel to introduce new playing members to 
Clubs. 

Thanks go to all our sponsors. To Ray White 
Woollahra|Paddington, Western Imaging Group, 
JazzRight Production Services, Deploy, Ultra Football, 
and Sydney FC, they are all truly valued partners of 
ESFA. 

To the ESFA Patrons, thank you to all of them for their 
support of Football in the local community. 

The ESFA Board, under the leadership of Chairperson 
Nigel Singh, are a fantastic group of people. ESFA is 
in excellent hands. All are very genuine people with 
no egos and are totally focused on delivering a great 
experience for all our Football stakeholders. In my 
opinion they have been the best Board to work under. 

Sadly, this will be the last report I write for ESFA in my 
capacity of General Manager. Western Australia beckons 
on a full-time basis! It was such an emotional and 
difficult decision to make when I resigned. I wish I could 
have just somehow transported ESFA across to WA or 
buzz myself from the Office to home! ESFA has been 
one of the best places to work and will always have a 
place in my heart. I have met so many good people. The 
Board and staff were so supportive of me throughout 
my tenure at ESFA, especially when I was going through 
my illness. Thank you does not seem enough. To the folk 
that kept in touch with me during my illness, I am so 
grateful – you really did help get me back on my feet.

In conclusion, I hope the 2023 season returns to a 
sense of normality. The World Cup in this Country will 
be a great highlight and let’s hope the sport thrives on 
this event and sets itself up for the future.  Enjoy the 
experience of Football. Enjoy the good and limit the 
bad. There are people a lot worse off than us and would 
trade places with us. The legacy that people involved in 
our sport create and leave is to be applauded as well as 
respected. I wish nothing but good for all of you. 

 
Bill Kostandas 
General Manager

Our player registration numbers for 2022 were 8,507, 
a drop on the 2021 numbers where we had 9,165 
registered players. I can only comment on Football, but 
there was a decline in player numbers right across all 
Associations that come under the auspices of Football 
NSW. In ESFA’s case, one of the reasons for this decline 
was due to the borders opening thus enabling people to 
travel again. 

The ESFA Pathways under our Head of Football Jaime 
Gomez continues to prosper. The SAP teams that 
compete in the Football NSW space continue to do well 
with the coaches focused on player development. It is 
pleasing to see that many of our players graduate from 
our Mixed Under 12’s and the Girls Under 13’s in to the 
NPL space. 

The ESFA SAP Under 12’s’ is a great initiative and there 
were six teams that entered in the inaugural season. 
Credit goes to the Clubs for supporting this. Next season 
the target is for more teams to play in this program as 
well as start up a program for the girls. 

The Minis program for two-to-five-year old’s run by 
Rio Darlaston went well this year and provides a great 
link for our local Clubs once these kids are eligible for 
MiniRoos. 

Coach Education is extremely important, and Jaime 
delivers programs that are critical for our aspiring 
coaches. Please, Jaime is there to help your coaches so 
utilise his services and expertise. 

Programs are planned for 2023, specifically focused 
at growing the female participation market and taking 
advantage of the Women’s World Cup. These include a 
Come & Try Program, more Girls only Gala Days (the one 
in March went extremely well in partnership with Sydney 
FC) and Female only Coach workshops and courses.

Our Community Engagement Officer, Rio Darlaston’s 
work has been great, especially with the Social Media 
postings and articles she has produced throughout 



FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
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EASTERN SUBURBS FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION INC.

Financial Report for the year ended
30 September 2022

ABN 92 759 968 542



Committee Members

The names of committee members throughout the year and at the date of the report are:

Director Portfolio
Nigel Singh Chairperson
Matthew Mihaljek Treasurer 
Andrew Field Director
Glen Overton Director
Lisa Thorn Director
Lawrence Narayan Director, appointed on 15th August 2022
Lisa Merryweather Director, appointed on 15th August 2022
Serena Kyriacou Director, appointed on 15th August 2022
Adam Lee Director, appointed on 5th September 2022
Adam Gwynne Director, resigned on 5th September 2022

Principal Activities

Operating Result

The operating surplus for the year was 1,037$  .

Significant Changes

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year.

Dividends

After Balance Date Events

Your committee members submit the financial report of the Eastern Suburbs Football Association 
Inc. for the financial year ended 30 September 2022.

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.
Committees' Report

The principal continuing activities of the association in the course of the financial year were the 
fostering and control of the game of association football within the boundaries of the Eastern 
Suburbs as determined by Football NSW.

The Constitution, Articles & By-Laws of the association prohibit the payment of dividends, 
accordingly no dividends have been provided for or paid during the financial year.

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Association, the results of those operations, 
or the state of affairs of the Association in future financial years.

 2
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Sept Sept
Note 2022 2021

$ $
Income

Administrative Income 44,177                32,919                   
Equipment Sales/Canteen Sales 6,609                  6,708                     
Interest Received 689                     596                        
Referee Income 172,143              84,962                   
Registration fees 1,503,714           1,504,248              
Other Income including COVID-19 Subsidies 2 17,218                48,135                   
ESFA Player Rebate -                     (112,686)

Total Income 1,744,550           1,564,882              

Expenditure
Administration Expenses (1,541) (3,049)
Advertising & Promotion (263) (5,096)
Affiliation Fees (588,773) (547,567)
Amortisation & Depreciation (8,008) (5,835)
Audit Fees (7,903) (7,993)
Awards & Prize Money (14,540) (3,383)
Clinics, Academies & Coaching Fees (105,886) (142,179)
Employment Expenses (479,046) (414,109)
Functions & Meetings Costs (4,998) (8,118)
General Expenses (22,291) (7,111)
Ground Hire, Maintenance & Grand Final Costs (88,124) (114,180)
Insurances (781) (2,366)
Legal fees (703) (1,080)
Player Equipment (92,580) (84,343)
Postage, Printing & Stationery (18,288) (14,374)
Referee Expenses (206,907) (102,452)
Rental Expense (40,140) (38,468)
Storage (6,168) (2,598)
Telephone, Communications & Licence Fees (53,841) (57,914)
Bad Debt Expense -                     (8,545)
Motor Vehicle Expenses (2,732) -                        

Total Expenditure (1,743,513) (1,570,760)

Surplus/(Deficit) before abnormal items 1,037                  (5,878)

Surplus/(Deficit) before income tax expense 1,037                  (5,878)
Income tax expense 1a -                     -                        

Surplus/(Deficit) after income tax 1,037                  (5,878)

Accumulated Surplus brought forward 488,332              494,210                 
Prior Year Adjustments - Over Accrual of COVID-19 Grants (22,185)

Accumulated Surplus carried forward 467,184              488,332                 

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.
Income and Expenditure Statement for the Year Ended 30 September 2022

The accompanying notes form part of this financial report

4
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Sept Sept
Note 2022 2021

$ $
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 413,751              403,097                 
Trade and Other Receivables 4 113,288              143,695                 
Inventories 5 5,975                  18,463                   

Total Current Assets 533,014              565,255                 

Non-current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 6 18,252                19,064                   

Total Non-current Assets 18,252                19,064                   

Total Assets 551,266              584,319                 

Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 7 24,558                38,138                   
Provisions 8 43,660                42,298                   

Total Current Liabilities 68,218                80,436                   

Non Current Liabilities
Provisions 9 15,864                15,551                   

Total Non-current Liabilities 15,864                15,551                   

Total Liabilities 84,082                95,987                   

Net Assets 467,184              488,332                 

Members' Funds
Accumulated Surplus 467,184              488,332                 

Total Members' Funds 467,184              488,332                 

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.
Assets and Liabilities Statement as at 30 September 2022

The accompanying notes form part of this financial report
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Sept Sept
Note 2022 2021

$ $

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers 1,752,084           1,710,944              
Payments to suppliers and employees (1,734,923) (1,916,669)
Interest received 689                     596                        

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 10(b) 17,850                (205,129)

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Payments for property, plant & equipment (7,196) (8,506)

Net cash (used in) investing activities (7,196) (8,506)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 10,654                (213,635)

Cash at beginning of year 403,097              616,732                 
Cash at end of year 10(a) 413,751              403,097                 

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30 September 2022

The accompanying notes form part of this financial report

6
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Note 1: Statement of Accounting Policies

a) Income Tax

b) Inventories

c) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

d) Impairment of Assets

e) Employee Benefits

f) Provisions

g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Provision is made for the association's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered
by employees to balance date. Employee benefits have been measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liability is settled.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease 
or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

At each reporting date, the entity reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s 
carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the income statement.

The following significant accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless 
otherwise stated, have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report.

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales. The committee has determined that
the association is not a reporting entity.

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 30 September 2022

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historic costs and does not
take into account changing money values or, except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-
current assets.

No provision for income tax has been raised as the entity is exempt from income tax under Section
50-45 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

Leasehold improvements and office equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The depreciable amount of all PPE is depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to the 
association commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.

Provisions are recognised when the association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of 
past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow 
can be reliably measured.  Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required 

       to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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Note 1: Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

h) Revenue and Other Income

i) Leases

j) Goods and Services Tax

k) Comparative Figures

l) New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted

Grant and donation income is recognised when the entity obtains control over the funds, which is
generally at the time of receipt.

Leases of PPE, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the
asset, but not the legal ownership, are transferred to the association, are classified as finance
leases.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful
lives or the lease term.

The entity has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued 
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting 
period.

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to 
changes in presentation for the current financial year.

Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Intrepretations that are not yet mandatory have not 
been early adopted. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which for floating rate
financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the
right to receive a dividend has been established.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the 
lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the 
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).  Receivables 
and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of 
GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the 
statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST 
component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into 
account any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed. For this purpose, deferred consideration 
is not discounted to present values when recognising revenue.

Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts 
equal to the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
Including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of 
the lease liability and the lease interest expense for that period.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 30 September 2022

8
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Sept Sept
2022 2021

$ $
Note 2: Other Income

JobKeeper and JobSaver - 40,950                   
Cash Flow Boost - 7,185                     
Service NSW 17,218                -

17,218                48,135                   

Note 3:

Current
Cash on Hand -                     (162)                      
Club Bonds Paid Account 17,349                17,339                   
Electronic Clearing Account -                     26                          
Cheque Account Botany 52,896                113,495                 
Business Online Saver 328,233              266,571                 
Cash at Bank - Debit Mastercard 15,273                5,828                     

413,751              403,097                 

Note 4: Trade and Other Receivables

Current
Trade Receivables 99,579                113,301                 

13,709                8,208                     
COVID-19 Related Receivables - 22,186                   

113,288              143,695                 
Note 5: Inventories

Current
Goods Held for Re-Sale 5,975                  18,463                   

5,975                  18,463                   

Note 6: Property, Plant and Equipment

Non-current Assets
Office Equipment 85,473                85,473                   
Accumulated Depreciation (82,324)              (76,658)                 

3,149                  8,815                     
Office Furniture 11,401                4,205                     
Accumulated Depreciation (3,209)                (2,247)                   

8,192                  1,958                     
Memorabilia 5,604                  5,604                     
Accumulated Depreciation (3,295)                (3,174)                   

2,309                  2,430                     
Sporting Equipment 11,932                11,932                   
Accumulated Depreciation (10,983) (10,568)

949                     1,364                     
Motor Vehicle 5,000                  5,000                     
Accumulated Depreciation (1,347) (503)

3,653                  4,497                     
18,252                19,064                   

Cash & Cash Equivalents

for the Year Ended 30 September 2022

Sundry Debtors

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

9



Sept Sept
2022 2021

$ $
Note 7: Trade and Other Payables

Current
Trade Creditors 1,901                  7,336                     
Sundry Creditors and Accrued Expenses 17,276                19,216                   
Employee Accruals 4,612                  5,170                     
GST Payable 769                     6,416                     

24,558                38,138                   
Note 8: Provisions

Current
Provision for Annual Leave 28,699                30,165                   
Provision for Long Service Leave 14,961                12,133                   

43,660                42,298                   
Note 9: Provisions 

Non Current
Provision for Member Bonds 6,000                  6,000                     

6,760                  6,760                     
Provision for Long Service Leave 3,104                  2,791                     

15,864                15,551                   

Note 10: Cash Flow Information
a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash on Hand -                     (162)
Club Bonds Paid Account 17,349                17,339                   
Electronic Clearing Account -                     26                          
Cheque Account Botany 52,896                113,495                 
Business Online Saver 328,233              266,571                 
Cash at Bank - Debit Mastercard 15,273                5,828                     

413,751              403,097                 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) after Income Tax 1,037                  (5,878)

Non-cash flows in operating surplus
Depreciation 8,008                  5,835                     
Provision for annual leave 1,465                  5,994                     
Provision for long service leave (3,141) (1,448)
Other (35,454)

Changes in assets & liabilities
Decrease/(Increase) in receivables 30,408                160,239                 
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 12,489                (1,601)
Increase/(Decrease) in sundry creditors and accrued expenses 1,363                  (368,270)
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 1,675                  

Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities 17,850                (205,129)

b) Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Operating Surplus/(Deficit) after Income Tax

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statements of cash flows is reconciled to the related 
items in the balance sheet as follows:

Provision for Education Refs

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.
Notes to the financial statements

for the Year Ended 30 September 2022

X2A0T

10
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Sept Sept
2022 2021

$ $
Note 11: Capital & Leasing Commitments

Operating Lease Commitments

- -                         -                            
- -                         -                            

-                         -                            

Note 12: Deed of Trust

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for  
Being rent of office

for the Year Ended 30 September 2022
Notes to the financial statements

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.

A Deed of Trust was entered into on 21 March 2013 between Alan Chow (Settlor) 
and Eastern Suburbs Football Association Incorporated (Trustee). The Trust Fund 
shall be known as the Eastern Suburbs Football Association Ground Development 
Fund. 

The Purpose of the Trust Fund is to increase the amount of, and improve the 
quality of, facilities available for the playing of Football in the Eastern Suburbs. 

payable within 1 - 2 years

The current property lease is on a month to month basis 

payable within 12 months
Payable - minimum lease payments

X2A1T

11



WWW.ESFA.COM.AU     21



22     2022 ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc. 
Certificate by Members of the Committee 

I, Nigel Singh and I, Matthew Mihaljek, certify that: 

a. We are members of the committee of Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc.

b. Nigel Singh attended the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the association held on 
22 November 2021

c. We intend to attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 22 November 2022.

d. We are authorised by the attached resolution of the committee to sign this certificate.

e. This annual statement shall be submitted to the members of the association at its AGM scheduled
for 22 November 2022

I 

Nigel �/ngh 
President 

Matthew Mihaljek 
Treasurer 

Signed at Sydney this 22nd day of November 2022 

15
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EASTERN SUBURBS FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION GROUND DEVELOPMENT FUND 
 

INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 

      
   2022  2021 
 Note  $  $ 
      
      

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
 
 

Page 1 

Income      
Revenue   1,819 1,381
Expenditure      
Other expenses   (5) (10)
Profit for the year   1,814 1,371
    
Total available for distribution   1,814 1,371
Distribution to beneficiaries   (1,814) (1,371)
Balance at 30 September 2022   - -
      
Beneficiaries distribution      
Eastern Suburbs Football Association 5  1,814 1,371
   1,814 1,371

      
      



EASTERN SUBURBS FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION GROUND DEVELOPMENT FUND 
 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 

      
   2022  2021 
 Note  $  $ 
      

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
 
 

Page 2 

ASSETS      
CURRENT ASSETS      
Cash and cash equivalents   720,926 634,043
Trade and other receivables 3  - -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   720,926 634,043
TOTAL ASSETS   720,926 634,043
      
LIABILITIES      
CURRENT LIABILITIES      
Trade and other payables 4  720,926 634,043
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   720,926 634,043
TOTAL LIABILITIES   720,926 634,043
NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES)   - -
      
EQUITY      
Retained earnings   - -
Current year earning   - -
TOTAL EQUITY - -
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EASTERN SUBURBS FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION GROUND DEVELOPMENT FUND 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 3 

 

The financial statements cover Eastern Suburbs Football Association Ground Development Fund
and have been prepared in accordance with the Trust deed to meet the needs of stakeholders and
to assist in the preparation of the tax return. 

   
 Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. 
   
1 Basis of Preparation 
   

 
The Trust is non reporting since there are unlikely to be any users who would rely on the general
purpose financial statements. 

   

 

The special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the significant
accounting policies described below and do not comply with any Australian Accounting Standards
unless otherwise stated. 

   

 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs
modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non current assets, 
financial assets and financial liabilities. 

   
Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are 
presented below and are consistent with prior reporting periods unless otherwise stated. 

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
  
 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
  

 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments 
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of change in value. Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents and are presented within 
current liabilities on the balance sheet. 

 



EASTERN SUBURBS FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION GROUND DEVELOPMENT FUND 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 4 

 Revenue and Other Income 
  

 

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and specific criteria relating 
to the type of revenue as noted below, has been satisfied. 

  

 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented
net of returns, discounts and rebates. 

  
 Interest revenue 
  
 Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 
  
 Rendering of services 
  

Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depends on whether the outcome of the
services can be measured reliably. If this is the case then the stage of completion of the services is 
used to determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in the period. If the outcome 
cannot be reliably measured then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses recognised that 
are recoverable. 
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EASTERN SUBURBS FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION GROUND DEVELOPMENT FUND 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 

      
   2022  2021 
   $  $ 
      

 
 

Page 5 

3 Trade and Other Receivables     
      
 Current     
 Trade Debtors  - -

    
4 Trade and Other Payables     
      
 Current     
 Other Creditors  23,582 21,769
 Ground Development Fund  697,344 612,274

   720,926 634,043

5 Beneficiaries     
      
 Eastern Suburbs Football Assoc     
 Share of profit  1,814 1,371
 Distribution to Beneficiaries (1,814) (1,371)

Total Beneficiaries Funds - -
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The Darug people are acknowledged as the Traditional Custodians of the land where I 
live and work. Respects are paid to Elders past and present and I extend that respect 
to all First Nations people.   

PROGRAMMES AND INCLUSIVITY DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Season 2022 had a very pleasant reminiscent vibe of 
“normality”.  Even during the rained-out weekends it 
was still comforting knowing we would eventually get 
back onto the parks.

Our Association calendar was pleasingly filled with 
lots of exciting programmes, celebrations and events 
bringing our football and the wider community together. 
We started off early with ESFA having a stall at Sydney 
Gay and Lesbian Mardi Gras Fair Day in February where 
over 70,000 people had attended. It was a huge day 
and we can’t wait to join in the celebrations again next 
February.

Walking Football is increasingly becoming more popular. 
Big congratulations to Maroubra United who are running 
this program and promoting inclusiveness for football in 
the Eastern Suburbs.

Purple Hearts backed up for their second season in 
mainstream football and this year played in the 35s. 
Club President Richard Baldwin informed us that the 
players had a fantastic season and the teams in the 35 
Division 2 competition displayed an enviable level of skill 
and sportsmanship.

May saw the launch of Female Football Week with 
several female focused programs and coaching courses 
run throughout the celebration. In the same month we 
recognised National Volunteer Week where all Clubs 
enthusiastically acknowledged and reflected upon the 
vital role that Volunteers play in ensuing the survival of 
the game in our district. Again, huge thanks to everyone 
involved in every Club. 

Through August ESFA Wore It Purple, supporting, 
empowering and celebrating the youth in our LGBTQIA+ 
community.

An event in October ensured we finished the year on a 
high note. ESFA worked alongside with John Moriarty 
Football organising the operations for a Corporate 
Fundraiser celebrating Indigenous Football Week held 
at the incredible newly rebuilt Allianz Stadium.  JMF 
is Australia’s longest running and most successful 
Indigenous football initiative for 2 to 18 year old’s and 
we take our hats off to their great work.

Enjoy the off season.

Lisa Thorn 
ESFA Board Director
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HEAD OF FOOTBALL REPORT 

Having a disrupted season in 2021 due to Covid, it was finally great to have a full 
calendar of events planned for 2022.  The enthusiasm and feeling were felt around 
grounds as clubs, volunteers and participants looked forward to a full season of 
football.  

The football season kicked off in February and continued 
through the season with various coach education 
community courses and workshops hosted by our 
clubs.  It was great to see so many coaches attended 
these programs with the view of improving our playing 
members. This year we hosted our first combined 
community coaching course with Macarthur FA. Given 
the proximity of the Associations, ESFA and Macarthur 
FA ran an online Skills Training Certificate allowing 
coaches to participate from home for the first night of 
the course. Having been a success, ESFA will be looking 
at running components of courses via online workshops, 
allowing more flexibility and ease of access to courses.  

The Female Coaching Mentoring Group continued 
to grow in 2022 with new members and initiatives.  
Leading into a FIFA Womens World Cup year, the 
foundation that has been set by our members will 
ensure 2023 will be a big year for Female football in the 
Eastern Suburbs. Special thanks to Julia Chernoukha 

for leading and coordinating the group once again. We 
cannot wait for 2023.

Along with coaching courses, ESFA also ran two Game 
Leader courses aimed at young upcoming referees that 
assist with their clubs MiniRoos football. This allowed 
for game leaders to not only learn but confirm rules and 
guidelines meaning more consistent games across our 
parks.

For the second consecutive year, ESFA in conjunction 
with Canterbury FA and Football St George, ran a 
centralised Advanced Coaching Course. Coaches from 
a range of our member clubs attended the seven day 
course and participated in the new Football Australia 
C-Licence course. It is great to see coaches taking the 
next step on their journey and ESFA will continue to 
run courses that enable our coaches the best education 
programs. Thank you to Andrew Morris (lead instructor) 
and Brian Dene (Football St George) for leading this 
course.



It was great to continue to forge the relationship with 
the John Moriarty Foundation through assistance 
with coach education and their charity event.  We look 
forward to supporting the foundation in 2023.

For our young footballers, the season kicked off with 
a gala day hosted by Sydney FC. This set the tone for 
the season, and it was a great way to start the winter 
season.

against other Associations and National Premier League 
Clubs.  Under the guidance of Dan Pyke and Sarah Ferris, 
the children developed over the year with our Under 12s 
Mixed and Under 13 Girls players graduating into NPL 
Football. Congratulations to all coaches, managers and 
players for a great season and we are looking forward to 
continuing the work in 2023.

As we head into a FIFA World Cup year on our shores, 
2023 is looking to be the biggest season yet. ESFA has 
many new initiatives that will support its member clubs 
and players along with continuing to deliver important 
programs that will assist football in the East.  

Thank you to all the ESFA staff and Board for its support 
during 2022 and we look forward to a great 2023 year of 
football.

Jaime Gomez 
Head of Football

The ESFA Association SAP League grew this year with 
the addition of Under 9s age group. Games were played 
in great spirit, and it was encouraging to see so many 
talented football players. Being in its infancy there will 
be many additions in 2023 to make it the showcase age 
groups in football. 2023 we are hoping to include our 
girls and launch the Association Girls SAP League.  

For our All Age teams, ESFA provided regular small 
group goal keeping sessions held throughout the 
season. The initial uptake was fantastic, and the 
program will be run in 2023 allowing our goal keepers to 
have access to professional guidance. 

Through our relationship with Sydney FC, the Sydney 
FC/ESFA Skill Training Programs, Holiday camps and 
School Programs were run again by our expert coaches.  
We also hosted the inaugural Sydney FC/ESFA Schools 
comp with primary schools across the east battling 
out to see who would be crowned champions.  The 
involvement of schools in the overall football footprint 
is key to the further engagement and success of our 
competitions. Thank you to Sarah Ferris, our Sydney FC/
ESFA Game Development Officer, for her guidance and 
management of these programs, which have served as 
an important part of football in the East.

For our aspiring Matildas and Socceroos, the ESFA Girls 
and Mixed SAP programs had a full season competing 
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HEAD OF COMPETITIONS REPORT

Congratulations to all our Clubs, their committees, and teams. Together we've 
successfully navigated the record levels of wet weather and an awkward return from 
COVID to play out complete competitions and finals for juniors and seniors. This 
tremendous achievement compares well to the amount of football played elsewhere in 
Sydney. 

Caroline and Dwayne have worked tirelessly through the 
season, often at odd hours, in pursuit of the complete 
season. Their reports reflect on the many successes and 
challenges we've had this year. We're underway with 
Summer Football and we're looking forward to the 2023 
Winter Season. A big year for football with a World Cup 
on our doorstep.

We have an opportunity to grow interest and 
participation in our game over the next 12 months with 
both FIFA World Cups coming up. We want to continue to 
ensure, above everything else, that ESFA football is fair, 
affordable, competitive, inclusive, and fun.

With a diverse range of Clubs here in ESFA there is 
always much to do. There are many exciting challenges. 
We want to help facilitate and encourage growth in 
junior football with our Clubs, improve the fields and 
amenities available to us through Councils, improve the 
football experience particularly for teens and ensure we 
maximise the amount of football we play, whether that 
be through midweek or preseason cups, through Gala 
Days or other formats of the game. 



DRIBL

We have now completed our second full winter 
season on DRIBL. It's an essential platform enabling 
governance, competition management and it has 
become our central repository for players, teams, 
referees, summer football and cup competitions. New 
features and capabilities were added this year. Most 
importantly, it has become more familiar and more 
reliable. 

We will continue to gather and act on feedback relating 
to DRIBL. Given the need for tightly managed and 
scarce ground availability we're feeding DRIBL with 
thousands of combinations of team/date/time/desired 
field combinations and drawing thousands of matches 
across leagues (adult, junior and mini) each season. 
Every referee appointment, caution, card, report and 
of course every match, score and league are being 
managed through the platform. 

We will continue to pursue and advocate for 
improvements in user experience and attain the 
flexibility and features that support our unique demands 
as a district. 

OFFICE

After operating remotely for some time at the end 
of 2021, early this year we made the move from 
Eastgardens to new office space in Matraville. We found 
a way to obtain more space for less cost and have room 
to move and grow. As we continue to settle in, our clubs, 
referees, partners and sponsors are more than welcome 
to drop by. 

Bring on 2023!

Greg Storey

Head of Competitions
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“The pessimist complains about the wind; the optimist expects it to change; the realist 
adjusts the sails.” – William Arthur Ward

COMPETITION MANAGER'S REPORT

Coming off two Covid affected seasons and 
understanding the trepidation of players to sign up for 
Winter 2022, it in the end, was never going to be a virus 
that got us, but rather the wrath of Mother Nature, 
breaking records for annual rainfall! Adjust the sails.

Rain affected the preseason almost as much as the 
season. Clubs worked hard for player registrations and 
grading on muddy pitches or no pitches at all and this 
led to some teething issues for all age groups.

We were able to host with Maroubra United thanks 
to the huge efforts of Adam Lee, the annual Louise 
Mazzaroli Cup at Latham Park which was well attended 
and enjoyed by our female players in ESFA and won 
by Dunbar Rovers FC. This was a great opportunity to 
promote female football in memory of Louise Mazzaroli 
who gave so much of her time to the development of 
female football and refereeing in the Eastern Suburbs. 

have played 14-17 matches. In the end this was a positive 
result for our youngest players. Adjust the sails.

MiniRoos are regraded after every 5 rounds which is 
based on scores and Club requests. Our battle however 
is to ensure there are no byes in MiniRoos and no 
divisions which are above and beyond grassroots 
footballers. An even larger battle to win, is clubs’ 
expectations of the number of games at their fields 
based on field availability. If every park could be full 
every weekend as expected, then we as well as Clubs 
would be happy. Until all clubs have grounds with the 
same times available and the MiniRoos age groups grow, 

Pre-Season and early season saw some of our Men’s 
Premier League Clubs campaign in the Football 
Australia Cup. 

With MiniRoos hardly making an appearance at the 
parks for grading purposes pre-season due to the 
unbelievable amount of precipitation, we delayed the 
commencement of season by a week, allowing Clubs 
the extra time to chorale their teams. This assisted the 
Clubs however, on the first day of the season, we still 
battled the elements and not all our youngsters took to 
the fields. 

We subsequently made the decision to increase the 
season for our youngsters and complete on the weekend 
of 20th and 21st August, which allowed most kids to 



this will continue to be problematic in the number of 
demands to ESFA. 

Our Club SAP program provides a talent based and 
skills program for U9s, U10s, U11s and U12 boys with the 
hope to extend this to U10 and U12 girls in 2023. This 
program is a skill-based program and allows ESFA Club 
players to follow the same FA Curriculum of the Skills 
Acquisition Program. 

The ESFA Junior competitions certainly had their fair 
share of challenges beyond the weather. Numbers 
were down in specific age groups though overall the 
same as previous years. This affected our U15 and 
U16 competitions the most with a combined 15/16 
competition for both Championship and Division 2. The 
age groups were split however for the Grand Finals. The 
U18s comprised of 2 divisions which was a great result 
for football. It should be obvious practice that our U18s 
move into an U21 competition for 2023 and not straight 
into Senior Football.

The girls’ competitions were well set except for G17 
which also was combined between Championship and 
Division 2. Retrospectively for the greater good of 
football and the players, my personal choice would have 
been 2 divisions of 5 teams. It is hoped that ESFA has 
a greater opportunity to implement competitions as 
the governing body for the future of the girl’s game. 
Once again, it would be beneficial to offer either a G18 
competition or a Womens 21 for 2023 to keep the girls 
in the game especially during the Women’s World Cup 
year. Clubs and ESFA should be looking to build off the 
momentum the World Cup will bring to Australia.

One of the challenges with Junior football is juggling 
each Club’s individual demands while attempting to 
ensure everyone is given beneficial service. The other 
challenge is the lack of fields for rescheduled fixtures 
at a suitable time slot and the number of demands 
placed on reschedules. In 2023 it is paramount that 
ESFA lead the rescheduling (as with Seniors) and 
only reasonable (at ESFA’s discretion) reasoning for 
unavailability be accepted. The Competition Rules need 
to be accepted more broadly by Junior Clubs. There 
is also the challenge of demographics with Private 
School children’s availability on Saturdays. Whilst we 
have specific time slots, these have proven to not 
suit everyone. The solutions and debate of moving 
to Sundays or indeed Saturday mornings is constant 
and there needs to be a broader solution/cooperation 
between Clubs regarding the U13 and U14 mixed/boys’ 
competitions.

In exceptionally welcome news, ESFA were able to 
provide the Grand Finals opportunity for our Junior 
Competitions for the first time since 2019. Three years 
without seeing our Juniors certainly provided a highly 
successful, enjoyable, and exciting weekend. 16 Grand 
Finals, 2 venues and lots of brilliant football on display. 
We cannot speak highly enough of the young team 
captain’s whose speeches were as equally skilful as their 
football. The weather was not necessarily our friend 
though the show went on and we finished the season as 
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we started, rain and sunshine and rain, with spectators, 
families and supporters all enjoying the completion of 
season 2022. 

Our Champion of Champions results were the best since 
2015 in our Junior Grades. Easts G13s and Maccabi U14s 
making their way through to the Semi Finals was a 
fantastic achievement for the kids and Clubs involved. 

Senior Football player numbers were down however 
once again adjusting the sails, we were able to grade 
teams accordingly and h ad some brilliant results 
throughout the season. Our seniors were all privy to 
18 rounds of football regardless of the weather. Those 
sails adjusted exceptionally well thanks to the constant 
cooperation and assistance of Clubs. We had a record-
breaking number of night games! This added pressure 
to our referees however, they too became part of the 
exceptional push to complete the season.

Our Men’s Premier League saw a late withdrawal 
which resulted in an 8-team competition. We will be 
continually working with Clubs to build this and include 
Clubs who are currently not entered into the Premier 
League. This is a goal likely to be implemented next 
year to allow 2024 to see an updated Men’s Premier 
League competition. Our Clubs however still saw their 18 
rounds with the final 4 rounds seeded. This led to some 
exceptional games leading into our 3-week finals series, 

culminating in two captivating grand finals that required 
120 minutes in Reserve Grade and 120 minutes plus 
penalties in First Grade to complete. Congratulations 
to Glebe Wanderers Reserve Grade and Coogee United 
First Grade for becoming 2022 Men’s Premier League 
Champions. Dunbar Rovers Reserve Grade whilst making 
the Grand Finals were awarded the Premiers in 2022 
and Grand Final runners up.

We cannot forget the monumental season Glebe 
Gorillas First Grade had in becoming Men’s First Grade 
Premiers. Whilst not appearing in the Grand Final, Glebe 
Gorillas had one of the best Champion of Champions 
campaigns we have witnessed. Representing ESFA in 
the FNSW Champion of Champions final is a respected 
and recognised achievement and winning it even better, 
especially against Banksia Tigers! A fantastic season of 
firsts for the Glebe Gorillas. 

Our Women’s Premier League for the first time played 
for prize money in parity with the Men’s Competition. 
Whilst the League commenced 2022 with 9 teams 
after Lions entered the competition. Lions however 
were regraded back to Women’s 01 and the Women’s 
Premier League continued the season with 8 teams 
adjusting their sails without complaint. Coogee United 
were a phenomenal force and were victorious as 
League winners having never lost a game in the season. 
Football however is decided on every individual game 
and Sydney University took the Champions trophy in 
the Grand Finals which can be perceived in effect as a 
good news football story for WPL in that each game is 
individual.

Coogee United like their male counterparts Glebe 
Gorillas after a fabulous campaign for the Champion of 
Champions and a slight scare in their Semi Final which 
resulted in the best goalkeeping skills in a penalty shoot 
out you will likely ever witness, allowing the women to 



move through to the FNSW Champion of Champions 
final! Unfortunately, it was not to be for the women of 
Coogee in the Final with the cruelty of football coming 
in on a penalty shot (extra time/golden goal) against 
Seaforth. Coogee WPL however should be incredibly 
proud of their season having won 49 games in a row 
and showing their strength and fortitude in promoting 
female football.

We can’t go past the masters of Senior football with 
Dunbar O45 Championship winning the League, 
the Grand Final and winning their way to the FNSW 
Champion of Champions Final. Dunbar were the only 
team representing ESFA who were going for the treble 
in 2022. A feat worth celebrating for O45s football 
in the Eastern Suburbs. The gentlemen of ESFA took 
Hurstville Minotaurs to extra time and once again 
Golden Goal awarded the opposition the win. The 
gentlemen of ESFA should be proud however of their 
season and their Champion of Champions campaign. 

Purple Hearts player played within our Senior Women’s 
competition and we would wish to thank all Clubs 
involved.

Men’s Saturday competitions grew into 6 divisions! 
Whilst Sunday numbers in Men were down in number 
post Covid and the opening of international borders, 
there were still a healthy 7 divisions which we would 
expect to grow further in 2023.

Women’s football continued its growth. With 2023 FIFA 
Women’s World Cup, the likelihood of more women 
entering the world of football is high. 

Senior Grand Finals at five different venues stretched 
the staff but the embrace of the football community at 
all five venues was amazing! Our Grand Finals at two 
venues even had live streaming and downloading entire 
games for prosperity!

My sincere respect and admiration of Club hard working 
volunteers and administrators who assisted so greatly 
in ensuring 18 rounds of football was achieved in the 
seniors and at least 13 rounds in Juniors. Our MiniRoos 
played at least 14 rounds with some playing more if they 
were able to be based on synthetics. 

At the end of Winter Season 2021 we ran a successful 
but short Senior Summer Football competition. This was 
an excellent opportunity to play football all year round. 
This season we have introduced Mini Roos along with 
our Seniors. Once again 2022 has seen a great turn out 
for our Summer Football Competition and we thank all 
the parents, spectators and players who come along 
weekly for the joy and fun of football (serious as well!). 
In 2023 we would look to expand our program to meet 
demand.

Thank you to the ESFA office team, especially Greg and 
Dwayne. Every individual in the office contributes to 
improving football in the Eastern Suburbs, no matter 
which department and as a team our focus is football. 
Thank you to the Board for their continued support of 
the staff and special thank you to Adam Gwynne who 
has finished his tenure with the Board, as his assistance 
in 2022 should not be denied. With our General Manager 
Bill Kostandas leaving us shortly, my sincere thank you 
for his candour and leadership. In his time with ESFA he 
has been a welcome leader and faced many personal 
as well as professional challenges and he will be missed 
greatly by both me, the staff and the ESFA community.

Every season has its challenges and rewards. These 
were equally balanced in 2022. 

We adjusted the sails! Here’s to the wind blowing in the 
right direction for season 2023.

 
Caroline Oakes-Ash 
Competitions Manager

This season we entered the Randwick City Purple Hearts 
in our Men’s O35 Division 2 competition after previously 
entered in Men’s 09 in 2021. The Purple Hearts and all 
they represent, were embraced by our O35’s and we 
have nothing but praise for the respect and embrace 
provided by the O35’s Clubs to the Purple Hearts. Our 
Annual Report cover photo shows the ideology and 
affection shown to Purple Hearts with a Coogee player 
swapping shirts and playing for the Purple Hearts in 
the second half. This was a constant throughout the 
entire season with all teams. A special mention to 
Waverley Old Boys FC who turned up at Chifley with a 
complete squad of 18 players and a football match that 
will be forever remembered by both Clubs. The Purple 
Hearts are an important part of our Inclusivity and 
Diversity program. This was the first season a female 
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MATCH REVIEW OFFICER’S REPORT

After such a long period of disruption we looked forward to getting football running 
smoothly for 2022, but what could go wrong?

“The Rain” quickly became the undoing of 2022 in 
which the focus and expectation was to get back to 
playing football in a normal and uninterrupted season. 
Disappointment for players, managers and organisers 
were felt hard as a considerable number of grass 
pitches throughout the season were closed with rain 
ever looming from week to week. Although with its 
caveats, ESFA with great co-operation from its clubs, 
teams and participants miraculously were able complete 
a full season and a final series for all its competitive 
competitions. A big thank you must be given to Caroline 
and Greg from our competitions department and the 
organisers of each club for all the constant rescheduling 
of games, communications and organising required to 
get players out on the parks.

As Match Review Officer, the disciplinary side of football 
is the focus. For reference the following tables outlines 
this season Disciplinary stats.

Card Code Card Amount

R1 - Serious Foul Play 24
R2 - Violent Conduct 45
R3 - Spitting at an opponent or any other 
person

1

R4 - Denying scoring opportunity by deliberate 
handball goal

11

R5 - Denying goal scoring opportunity by an 
offence punishable by a free kick

12

R6 – Offensive, insulting, abusive or 
intimidating language and/or gestures

33

R7 – Second Caution 108
Total 234

4 Player Citations

4 RTO Citations

2 Club Citations

10 Total Citations

5 Hearings requested from parties

0 Appeals
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9 HEARINGS IN TOTAL FOR 2022

There was an average of 1 red card every 9.6 games 
for 2022. Comparatively there was 1 red card every 
7.4 games in the shortened 2021 season. We hope this 
season of improved player conduct continues as a trend 
for 2023. Additionally, there was an average of 1 hearing 
per week during the 2022 season and comparatively to 
previous seasons the Judiciary were not as active.

However, there is still a concerning number of cards 
given for R2 and R6 this season, hinting that the season 
did not come without its vexations. It can be understood 
that playing the game sometimes comes with its 
irritations, but it is unacceptable when it results in 
violence or abuse. This is another reminder that respect 
for each other and respect for the game will result in 
a better outcome and enjoyment of the game for all, 
simple! 

We are extremely thankful for the volunteers John 
Harris, Roy Belcher, David Patch, Lisa Thorn, Ron Ogilvie, 
Laurie Archer, Paul Peters, Phillips Carabitsios and 
Chris Calverley for their contributions to the Judiciary 
process this season. I would like to make a special thank 
you to my comrade Board Member, Glen Overton for his 
continual efforts and experience he provides to his role 
within in judiciary committee.

I’d also like to thank the clubs and their representatives 
for their co-operation and time in dealing with judicial 
matters and thank you to those who attended judiciary 
hearings and their understanding.

With gratitude I would also like to thank the ESFA 
Board and the team at the office for their support. The 
diligence and teamwork displayed helped this season 
enjoyable considering the interruptions from the 
weather. Sadly, we will be seeing our General Manger, 
Bill Kostandas part ways with us for next season. In 
my time at ESFA you have showed great leadership, 
encouragement, and determination to improve football 
within the Eastern Suburbs. Thank you, you will be 
sorely missed.

I look forward to seeing clubs, players, coaches, 
volunteers, and referees back in 2023!

Best wishes for the off season.

Dwayne Leverett 
Match Review Officer
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ESFA REFEREES BRANCH CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT

This year we had an outstanding season, great atmosphere around the park, and a 
beautiful vibe after 2 years of dramas.

I would like to thank every one of you for your support, 
ESFA Board and staff to deliver the season, their hard 
work didn’t go unnoticed. I would like to thank the clubs 
and their staff for all the work they have done this 
season. I would like to thank the referees committee 
members for their input towards the branch.  

In looking back at the season with the committee and 
what we planned for the season, I believe we were able 
to deliver. We continued personal feedback which we 
believed would be fundamental to become a better 
referee. 

Like last year we engage coaches and mentors and 
provide their personal expertise and knowledge to our 

younger members and senior members as result we 
saw less dissent across the board. Total of 13 coaches 
were out there and conducted 50 assessments. Our 
target was to assess all new members and all returning 
referees who required revalidation as per FNSW 
requirements. 

Fitness training preseason, online courses every month, 
laws of the game updates and detailed training around 
it. This year we trialled and set up an online module on 
how to become a referee and already saw a result.

In the end, a lot has been done, whilst I am proud of 
our efforts this year, I realise that the most important 
task for the next year should be retaining referees.  We 
should be able to maintain feedback between members 

COVERAGE 
Days Total 

Games
Covered 

Games (CR 
Only)

Coverage 
(%)

Friday 54 54 100%

Saturday 798 775 97.1%

Sunday 1396 1221 87.5%

and be proactive regarding the issues that they face out 
on and off the field and hopefully we will find the right 
solution to maintain the numbers. 

Denys Antonov 
ESFA Referee Branch Chairperson
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ESFA MINIS PROGRAM COORDINATOR'S REPORT

We are reaching the end of our second year of the minis program. This program has 
been running during the school terms and has provided fun football experiences to 
over 100 children, many of whom return every term. 

Through this pathway, we have seen numerous children 
filter into our local association clubs once they reach 
school age. As a result, more children are entering our 
association teams with experience and knowledge of 
how to play the game. This is exactly what we set out 
to do in the early stages of launching the program and 
we couldn’t be happier that the pathway is working. 
We envisage that through ESFA minis, the standard 
of football will improve right from the early ages and 
more children will build their love of the game through 
enjoyable football experiences.

Rio Darlaston 
ESFA Minis Program Coordinator



COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT OFFICER'S REPORT

Throughout 2022 we have seen a significant increase in the number of people 
engaging with our social media sites and interacting with both ESFA staff and fellow 
members of the ESFA community. 

Through our social media channels including Instagram, 
Facebook and LinkedIn we have been able to promote 
dozens of events, pathways, programs, competitions, 
sponsors, achievements, and general information.

Through our partnership with Sydney FC, we have been 
able to assist with the marketing of our linked programs 
including the Skills Training Program (STP) and school 
holiday clinics. We have also aided in the promotion 
of Sydney FC men’s and women’s games, helping to 
create a sense of belonging to our local a-league club 
and therefore growing the fan base. Our MiniRoos 
players have been fortunate enough to participate in 
the stadium lap and half-time heroes matches at Sydney 
FC’s home games throughout the year.

We have continued to develop our relationships with 
our sponsors by way of promoting their brand through 
our social media channels. Our SAP squads playing 
jerseys contain the Ray White Woollahra Paddington and 
Western Imaging Group logos, and photos displaying 

these logos are frequently broadcast. Dribl have 
provided us with branded goals for our SAP and minis 
programs, which can be seen being enjoyed throughout 
our socials. Furthermore, you will see many images 
posted including the fantastic Deploy balls.

Jazzright Streaming Services provided full broadcasts 
of our Senior Grand Finals which was promoted heavily 
during the weeks leading up to them. This amazing tool 
allowed people to watch the finals from all over the 
world, therefore expanding the audience tuning into 
our ESFA social platforms, keen for updates, clips, and 
photos of the finals.

Through our large database both via socials and email 
subscribers, we have been able to promote material for 
our local clubs including various open days, key events, 
and programs. This is a fantastic tool for our clubs as it’s 
a way to reach more people than their own platforms 
allow, therefore aiding in the growth of their own 
community.
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Throughout the year we have launched various 
competitions giving our followers the opportunity to 
win a signed Sydney FC jersey and a $200 Ultra Football 
Voucher. Through these competitions we were able 
to build a stronger social following, increase brand 
awareness for both us and our participating sponsors, 
build positive relationships with our community and 
drive more traffic to our platforms.

My favourite moments throughout the year have come 
from simple images and videos shared that showcase 
players, teams, and clubs. The love, respect and all-
round praise that has been seen from the whole 
community, regardless of the club they represent has 
been incredible.

Rio Darlaston 
Community Engagement Officer



SYDNEY FC FAN DEVELOPMENT OFFICER’S REPORT

During 2022 ESFA in conjunction with Sydney FC provided programs for over 1000 
young players

These programs include school holiday clinics, Skills 
Training Programs and school programs/visits. At the 
beginning of Term 3, 20 teams from a number of schools 
across the region, took part on the ESFA & Sydney FC 
Schools Cup.

In March we held our first Pre-Season girls’ gala day 
which was attended by over 200 female players from 
Maroubra United, Glebe Wanderers, Mascot Kings, 
Maccabi Hakoah, & Pagewood Botany.

Sydney FC hosted ESFA in their 21/22 Round 24 
game vs Western Sydney Wanderers. Over 90 players 
participated in a variety of game day experiences 
including player mascots, half time games and stadium 
march past. 

With Sydney FC moving back home to the new Allianz 
Stadium we are excited to provide more opportunities to 
our players. The opening game on 10th October provided 
game day experiences for 280 ESFA players.  

We had 50 female players enjoy experiences across 
a number of A-League Women’s game and other 
opportunities including a visit to a ALW training session.

We look forward to even greater opportunities in 2023.

Sarah Ferris 
Sydney FC Fan Development Officer – Eastern Suburbs

WWW.ESFA.COM.AU     47



48     2022 ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     

U13 Championship Mixed
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Pagewood Botany Pumas 40 62 18 44 14 12 2 0 1 0 1 0 0

2 Dunbar Rovers Junior FC White 27 58 20 38 13 7 2 4 2 0 1 0 0

3 Easts FC 23 42 25 17 14 6 3 5 1 0 2 0 0

4 Glebe Wanderers Blue 23 33 30 3 12 5 1 6 2 0 0 0 3

5 Maroubra United A 21 32 34 -2 14 6 1 7 1 0 0 0 0

6 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors 13 11 55 -44 9 1 1 7 1 0 0 0 7

U13 02 Mixed
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Mascot Kings 28 39 9 30 12 8 2 2 1 0 0 0 0

2 Dunbar Rovers Junior FC Blue 27 52 6 46 7 6 1 0 1 0 0 0 6

3 Pagewood Botany Atletico 27 32 23 9 12 7 2 3 2 0 0 0 0

4 Glebe Wanderers White 24 27 29 -2 13 7 1 5 1 0 1 0 0

5 Maroubra United Jets 23 39 26 13 12 6 1 5 2 0 0 0 0

6 Queens Park Titans 17 35 58 -23 13 4 1 8 2 1 0 1 0

7
Pagewood Botany Clovelly 
Storm

17 29 52 -23 14 4 3 7 1 0 0 0 0

8 Maroubra United B 11 19 68 -49 13 2 1 10 2 0 0 0 0

9 Pagewood Botany Flames 10 10 41 -31 12 1 3 8 2 0 0 0 0

U14 Championship Mixed
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors Hawks 26 34 4 30 11 8 2 1 0 0 1 0 0

2 Dunbar Rovers Junior FC 13 16 20 -4 12 3 4 5 0 2 0 2 0

3 Glebe Wanderers Blue 13 21 35 -14 12 3 4 5 0 0 0 0 0

4 Maroubra United Raptors 12 13 25 -12 13 2 6 5 0 0 1 0 0

2022 PREMIERS AND LEAGUE CHAMPIONS – BOYS 

Competition Name Premiers Champions Runners-Up

U13 Championship 2022 Pagewood Botany Pumas Pagewood Botany Pumas Easts FC

U13 Division 2 2022 Mascot Kings Pagewood Botany Atletico Mascot Kings

U14 Championship 2022
Maccabi Hakoah Juniors 
Hawks

Dunbar Rovers
Maccabi Hakoah Juniors 
Hawks

U14 Division 2 2022 Mascot Kings Pagewood Botany Hunters Mascot Kings

U15 Championship 2022 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors  Dunbar Rovers Maccabi Hakoah Juniors  

U15 Division 2 2022 Pagewood Botany Epics Pagewood Botany Epics Maccabi Hakoah Juniors

U16 Championship 2022 Dunbar Rovers Dunbar Rovers Pagewood Botany Pumas

U16 Division 2 2022 Pagewood Botany Panthers Pagewood Botany Panthers Pagewood Botany Warriors

U18 Championship 2022 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors Maccabi Hakoah Juniors Waverley Old Boys Blue

U18 Division 2 2022 Glebe Wanderers Blue Glebe Wanderers Blue Maccabi Hakoah Juniors



U14 02 Mixed
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Mascot Kings 30 46 17 29 12 10 0 2 0 0 1 0 0

2 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors 26 55 8 47 11 8 2 1 0 0 1 0 0

3 Pagewood Botany Hunters 26 36 13 23 12 8 2 2 0 0 1 0 0

4 Maroubra United Orcas 19 24 17 7 11 6 1 4 0 0 0 0 0

5 Easts FC Blue 11 12 20 -8 12 3 2 7 0 0 1 0 0

6 Glebe Wanderers White 10 18 45 -27 12 2 4 6 0 0 0 0 0

7 Easts FC White 5 9 50 -41 11 1 2 8 0 0 0 0 0

8 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors Sunday 4 10 40 -30 11 1 1 9 0 4 0 4 0

U15 Championship Finals
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1
Maccabi Hakoah Juniors U15 
Champ

31 53 20 33 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 31

2 Easts FC Black U15 Champ 30 46 28 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30

3
Dunbar Rovers Junior FC U15 
Champ

21 38 37 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21

4 Mascot Kings U15 Champ 10 15 55 -40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10

5 Easts FC Red U15 Champ 9 19 70 -51 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

6
Maroubra United Bluebirds U15 
Champ

3 10 78 -68 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

U15 Div 2 Finals
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1
Pagewood Botany Epics U15 
Div 2

25 23 18 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25

2 Glebe Wanderers Blue U15 Div 2 25 35 31 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25

3
Maccabi Hakoah Juniors U15 
Div 2

23 31 26 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23

4
Pagewood Botany Ascending 
U15 Div 2

17 25 24 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17

5
Maroubra United Tigers U15 
Div 2

8 10 47 -37 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

U16 Championship Finals
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1
Dunbar Rovers Junior FC U16 
Champ

37 60 13 47 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37

2
Pagewood Botany Pumas U16 
Champ

36 72 12 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36
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U16 Championship Male
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1
Dunbar Rovers Junior FC U16 
Champ

37 60 13 47 15 12 1 2 0 0 0 0 0

2
Pagewood Botany Pumas U16 
Champ

36 72 12 60 15 11 3 1 0 0 0 0 0

3
Maccabi Hakoah Juniors U15 
Champ

31 53 20 33 15 10 1 4 0 0 0 0 0

4 Easts FC Black U15 Champ 30 46 28 18 15 10 0 5 0 0 0 0 0

5
Dunbar Rovers Junior FC U15 
Champ

21 38 37 1 15 7 0 8 0 0 0 0 0

6 Mascot Kings U15 Champ 10 15 55 -40 15 3 1 11 0 0 0 0 0

7 Easts FC Red U15 Champ 9 19 70 -51 15 3 0 12 0 0 0 0 0

8
Maroubra United Bluebirds U15 
Champ

3 10 78 -68 15 1 0 14 0 0 0 0 0

U16 Div 2 Finals
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1
Pagewood Botany Panthers U16 
Div 2 

36 42 14 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36

2
Pagewood Botany Warriors U16 
Div 2

22 21 27 -6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22

U16 02 Male
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1
Pagewood Botany Panthers U16 
Div 2

36 42 14 28 13 10 2 1 2 0 0 0 0

2 Pagewood Botany Epics U15 Div 2 25 23 18 5 13 6 3 4 2 0 0 0 0

3 Glebe Wanderers Blue U15 Div 2 25 35 31 4 13 6 3 4 2 0 0 0 0

4 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors U15 Div 2 23 31 26 5 13 5 4 4 2 0 0 0 0

5
Pagewood Botany Warriors U16 
Div 2

22 21 27 -6 13 6 0 7 2 0 0 0 0

6
Pagewood Botany Ascending U15 
Div 2

17 25 24 1 13 3 4 6 2 0 0 0 0

7 Maroubra United Tigers U15 Div 2 8 10 47 -37 12 0 2 10 3 0 0 0 0

U18 Championship Male
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors 28 29 23 6 11 7 1 3 3 2 0 2 0

2 Waverley Old Boys Blue 27 32 16 16 11 6 3 2 3 1 1 1 0

3 Mascot Kings 23 36 34 2 13 6 1 6 2 0 2 0 0

4 Maroubra United Green 23 24 26 -2 12 5 2 5 3 0 1 0 0

5 Dunbar Rovers Junior FC 23 23 28 -5 12 5 2 5 3 0 1 0 0

6 Coogee United 18 21 34 -13 12 4 0 8 3 4 2 4 0

7 Waverley Old Boys Yellow 16 24 28 -4 9 2 1 6 1 0 0 0 7

U18 02 Male
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Glebe Wanderers Blue 32 47 21 26 11 8 2 1 4 0 0 0 -2

2 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors 27 26 10 16 10 7 0 3 3 2 2 2 0

3 Queens Park Rangers 22 28 25 3 11 5 1 5 2 0 1 0 2

4 Maroubra United Gold 16 16 34 -18 11 3 1 7 3 0 1 0 0

5 Queens Park Dragons 11 13 40 -27 11 1 2 8 3 2 0 2 0



G13 Championship Female
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Easts FC Eagles 42 97 7 90 12 12 0 0 3 0 0 0 0

2 Queens Park Surf & Turf 29 30 16 14 12 7 2 3 3 0 0 0 0

3 Mascot Kings Queens 17 14 41 -27 12 3 2 7 3 0 0 0 0

4 Maroubra United Killer Whales 15 15 54 -39 12 3 0 9 3 0 0 0 0

5 Pagewood Botany 14 13 51 -38 12 2 2 8 3 0 0 0 0

G13 02 Female
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Maroubra United Thundercats 35 67 11 56 14 11 2 1 0 0 2 0 0

2 Queens Park Angels 30 54 13 41 13 9 3 1 0 0 2 0 0

3
Maccabi Hakoah Juniors 
Superstars

21 39 46 -7 14 7 0 7 0 0 2 0 0

4 Queens Park Panthers 19 25 33 -8 13 6 1 6 0 1 1 1 0

5 Queens Park Ripping Rockets 9 15 45 -30 13 3 0 10 0 1 0 1 0

6 Reddam House FC 3 8 60 -52 13 1 0 12 0 5 0 5 0

G15 Championship Female
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Maroubra United Matildas 37 68 20 48 12 8 3 1 2 0 0 0 6

2 Easts FC Stingrays 27 53 35 18 14 8 1 5 1 0 2 0 0

3 Maroubra United Girl Power 25 45 32 13 13 7 2 4 1 1 1 1 0

4 Pagewood Botany 16 34 45 -11 14 4 2 8 1 0 0 0 0

5 Queens Park Panthers 14 29 50 -21 12 2 3 7 1 0 0 0 3

2020 PREMIERS AND LEAGUE CHAMPIONS – GIRLS

Competition Name Premiers Champions Runners-Up

G13 Championship 2022 Easts FC  Eagles Easts FC Eagles Mascot Kings Queens

G13 Division 2 2022 Maroubra United Thundercats Maroubra United Thundercats Queens Park Angels

G15 Championship 2022 Maroubra United Matildas Easts FC Stingrays Maroubra United Matildas

G15 Division 2 2022 Queens Park Soccerstars Queens Park Super Sharks Maroubra United Hurricanes

G17 Championship 2022 Queens Park Waterdragons Queens Park Waterdragons Queens Park Cheetahs

G17 Division 2 2022 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors Maccabi Hakoah Juniors Mascot Kings  
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G15 02 Female
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Queens Park Soccerstars 35 24 5 19 13 10 1 2 2 0 0 0 0

2 Queens Park Super Sharks 31 39 26 13 14 9 2 3 1 0 1 0 0

3 Maroubra United Mockingjays 22 30 24 6 13 5 3 5 2 0 0 0 0

4 Maroubra United Hurricanes 18 33 29 4 14 5 1 8 1 0 0 0 0

5 Pagewood Botany Phoenix 14 20 30 -10 13 2 4 7 2 0 0 0 0

6 Easts FC Sharks 14 19 51 -32 13 3 1 9 2 1 0 1 0

   

G17 Division 2 Finals
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors Div 2 16 32 42 -10 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 16

2 Pagewood Botany Div 2 13 20 51 -31 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 13

3 Mascot Kings Div 2 11 24 44 -20 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 11

4 Maroubra United Green Div 2 6 8 103 -95 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 6

5 Reddam House FC Div 2 3 9 51 -42 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 3

G17 Championship Finals
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Queens Park Waterdragons 38 77 5 72 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 38

2 Queens Park Cheetahs 34 64 12 52 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 34

3 Maroubra United Gold 25 52 20 32 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25

4 Queens Park Wildcats 25 35 28 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 25

5 Queens Park Fireflies 22 52 17 35 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22

G17 Championship Female
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Queens Park Waterdragons 38 77 5 72 14 12 2 0 0 0 1 0 0

2 Queens Park Cheetahs 34 64 12 52 13 11 1 1 0 0 2 0 0

3 Maroubra United Gold 25 52 20 32 13 8 1 4 0 0 0 0 0

4 Queens Park Wildcats 25 35 28 7 13 8 1 4 0 0 1 0 0

5 Queens Park Fireflies 22 52 17 35 13 7 1 5 0 0 0 0 0

6 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors Div 2 16 32 42 -10 13 5 1 7 0 0 1 0 0

7 Pagewood Botany Div 2 13 20 51 -31 14 4 1 9 0 0 2 0 0

8 Mascot Kings Div 2 12 24 44 -20 14 3 3 8 0 0 1 0 0

9 Maroubra United Green Div 2 7 8 103 -95 13 2 1 10 0 0 2 0 0

10 Reddam House FC Div 2 3 9 51 -42 14 1 0 13 0 10 0 10 0
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2022 PREMIERS AND LEAGUE CHAMPIONS – MEN 

Competition Name Premiers Champions Runners-Up

Men's Division 01 2022 Barnstoneworth Utd South East Eagles Dunbar Rovers

Men's Division 02 2022 UNSW FC Coogee United UNSW FC

Men's Division 03 2022 Queens Park Black Queens Park Black Waverley Old Boys

Men's Division 04 2022 Dunbar Rovers UNSW Rangers Dunbar Rovers

Men's Division 05 2022 Coogee United Coogee United South East Eagles

Men's Division 06 2022 Heffron Hawks Heffron Hawks South East Eagles

Men's Division 07 2022 UNSW FC UNSW FC Pagewood Botany

Men's Premier League First 
Grade 2022

Glebe Gorillas Coogee United Glebe Wanderers

Men's Premier League 
Reserve Grade 2022

Dunbar Rovers Glebe Wanderers Dunbar Rovers

Men's (Sat) Division 01 2022 Queens Park Black Queens Park Black Heffron Hawks

Men's (Sat) Division 02 2022 Maroubra United Maroubra United Lokomotiv Cove

Men's (Sat) Division 03 2022 Mascot Kings Dunbar Rovers Mascot Kings

Men's (Sat) Division 04 2022 Queens Park  Mascot Kings Queens Park

Men's (Sat) Division 05 2022 Mascot Kings Blue Mascot Kings Blue Sydney University Yellow

Men's (Sat) Division 06 2022 Mascot Kings White Lokomotiv Cove Mascot Kings White

O35 Championship 2022 Pagewood Botany Pagewood Botany Glebe Wanderers

O35 Division 2 2022 Coogee United C Queens Park Waverley Old Boys

O45 Championship 2022 Dunbar Rovers Dunbar Rovers Pagewood Botany

O45 Division 2 2022 Coogee United  Queen Park Dunbar Rovers

Men's Premier League First Grade
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Barnstoneworth 38 31 19 12 18 12 2 4 0 0 1 0 0

2 South East Eagles 36 34 21 13 18 12 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

3 UNSW FC 33 42 25 17 18 10 3 5 0 0 2 0 0

4 Dunbar Rovers 27 39 29 10 18 8 3 7 0 0 0 0 0

5 Coogee United 13 24 40 -16 18 4 1 13 0 1 0 1 0

6 Maccabi Hakoah 10 23 59 -36 18 3 1 14 0 2 0 2 0

Men's Premier League Reserve Grade
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 UNSW FC 46 80 26 54 18 15 1 2 0 0 0 0 0

2 Coogee United White 41 70 19 51 18 13 2 3 0 0 0 0 0

3 Randwick City 36 40 35 5 18 11 3 4 0 0 0 0 0

4 Dunbar Rovers 34 51 31 20 18 11 1 6 0 0 0 0 0

5 Lokomotiv Cove 31 36 36 0 18 10 1 7 0 0 3 0 0

6 Queens Park 10 21 43 -22 18 3 1 14 0 0 0 0 0

7 Coogee United Black 10 19 65 -46 18 3 1 14 0 2 0 2 0

8 Maroubra United 3 10 72 -62 18 1 0 17 0 1 0 1 0



 
Men (Sat) 01
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Queens Park Black 43 59 24 35 16 13 0 3 2 0 1 0 0

2 Coogee United 36 30 19 11 16 10 2 4 2 0 1 0 0

3 Waverley Old Boys 32 34 26 8 16 8 4 4 2 0 0 0 0

4 Queens Park Red 31 47 34 13 16 9 0 7 2 0 1 0 0

5 Dunbar Rovers 27 30 29 1 16 7 2 7 2 0 0 0 0

6 UNSW FC 20 30 56 -26 16 5 1 10 2 0 0 0 0

7 Lions Football Club 19 19 34 -15 15 4 3 8 2 1 0 1 0

8 Maccabi Hakoah 17 26 37 -11 16 4 1 11 2 2 0 2 0

9 South East Eagles 17 28 44 -16 15 4 1 10 2 1 1 1 0

Men (Sat) 02
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Dunbar Rovers 39 57 33 24 18 13 0 5 0 0 0 0 0

2 UNSW FC Rangers 36 58 30 28 18 11 3 4 0 0 0 0 0

3 UNSW FC Casuals 31 43 36 7 18 10 1 7 0 1 0 1 0

4 Lokomotiv Cove 26 31 39 -8 18 7 5 6 0 0 0 0 0

5 Queens Park 23 35 47 -12 18 7 2 9 0 1 0 1 0

6 Coogee United 22 35 42 -7 18 6 4 8 0 0 1 0 0

7 Maroubra United 17 31 39 -8 18 5 2 11 0 0 0 0 0

8 South East Eagles 13 25 49 -24 18 4 1 13 0 0 1 0 0

 
Men (Sat) 03
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Coogee United 50 96 10 86 16 15 1 0 2 0 1 0 0

2 Waverley Old Boys 39 61 29 32 16 11 2 3 2 0 0 0 0

3 South East Eagles 34 34 25 9 16 9 3 4 2 0 2 0 0

4 Randwick City 32 47 27 20 16 9 1 6 2 0 2 0 0

5 Lokomotiv Cove B 30 34 23 11 16 7 5 4 2 0 1 0 0

6 Lokomotiv Cove A 21 31 46 -15 16 5 2 9 2 2 0 2 0

7 Maroubra United 16 28 45 -17 16 3 3 10 2 1 1 1 0

8 Lions Football Club 15 23 61 -38 16 2 5 9 2 1 0 1 0

9 Queens Park 4 20 108 -88 16 0 0 16 2 3 0 3 0

 
Men (Sat) 04
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Barnstoneworth 38 31 19 12 18 12 2 4 0 0 1 0 0

2 South East Eagles 36 34 21 13 18 12 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

3 UNSW FC 33 42 25 17 18 10 3 5 0 0 2 0 0

4 Dunbar Rovers 27 39 29 10 18 8 3 7 0 0 0 0 0

5 Coogee United 13 24 40 -16 18 4 1 13 0 1 0 1 0

6 Maccabi Hakoah 10 23 59 -36 18 3 1 14 0 2 0 2 0
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Men (Sat) 05
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Heffron Hawks 47 95 21 74 16 14 1 1 2 0 1 0 0

2 Pagewood Botany 39 45 44 1 16 11 2 3 2 0 0 0 0

3 South East Eagles 37 65 33 32 17 11 2 4 1 0 0 0 0

4 Kytherians 31 40 33 7 17 9 2 6 1 0 0 0 0

5 Maroubra United Gold 30 32 33 -1 16 8 2 6 2 0 0 0 0

6 Queens Park 21 23 42 -19 16 5 2 9 2 0 0 0 0

7 Lokomotiv Cove 20 31 45 -14 16 4 4 8 2 0 0 0 0

8 Maroubra United Green 11 25 57 -32 16 2 1 13 2 0 0 0 0

9 Mascot Kings Blue 6 12 60 -48 14 0 0 14 4 1 0 1 -2

Men (Sat) 06
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 UNSW FC 45 63 20 43 16 13 2 1 2 0 1 0 0

2 Pagewood Botany 41 53 18 35 16 12 1 3 2 0 0 0 0

3 Redfern Raiders 39 54 26 28 16 11 2 3 2 0 0 0 0

4 Dunbar Rovers 32 43 29 14 16 9 1 6 2 0 0 0 0

5 Lokomotiv Cove B 31 47 33 14 16 8 3 5 2 0 0 0 0

6 Heffron Hawks 24 40 41 -1 16 6 2 8 2 0 1 0 0

7 Lokomotiv Cove A 14 27 57 -30 16 3 1 12 2 0 0 0 0

8 South East Eagles 10 20 63 -43 16 1 3 12 2 0 0 0 0

9 Maroubra United 8 8 68 -60 16 1 1 14 2 2 0 2 0

Men 01
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Barnstoneworth 38 31 19 12 18 12 2 4 0 0 1 0 0

2 South East Eagles 36 34 21 13 18 12 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

3 UNSW FC 33 42 25 17 18 10 3 5 0 0 2 0 0

4 Dunbar Rovers 27 39 29 10 18 8 3 7 0 0 0 0 0

5 Coogee United 13 24 40 -16 18 4 1 13 0 1 0 1 0

6 Maccabi Hakoah 10 23 59 -36 18 3 1 14 0 2 0 2 0

Men 02
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 UNSW FC 46 80 26 54 18 15 1 2 0 0 0 0 0

2 Coogee United White 41 70 19 51 18 13 2 3 0 0 0 0 0

3 Randwick City 36 40 35 5 18 11 3 4 0 0 0 0 0

4 Dunbar Rovers 34 51 31 20 18 11 1 6 0 0 0 0 0

5 Lokomotiv Cove 31 36 36 0 18 10 1 7 0 0 3 0 0

6 Queens Park 10 21 43 -22 18 3 1 14 0 0 0 0 0

7 Coogee United Black 10 19 65 -46 18 3 1 14 0 2 0 2 0

8 Maroubra United 3 10 72 -62 18 1 0 17 0 1 0 1 0



Men 03
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Queens Park Black 43 59 24 35 16 13 0 3 2 0 1 0 0

2 Coogee United 36 30 19 11 16 10 2 4 2 0 1 0 0

3 Waverley Old Boys 32 34 26 8 16 8 4 4 2 0 0 0 0

4 Queens Park Red 31 47 34 13 16 9 0 7 2 0 1 0 0

5 Dunbar Rovers 27 30 29 1 16 7 2 7 2 0 0 0 0

6 UNSW FC 20 30 56 -26 16 5 1 10 2 0 0 0 0

7 Lions Football Club 19 19 34 -15 15 4 3 8 2 1 0 1 0

8 Maccabi Hakoah 17 26 37 -11 16 4 1 11 2 2 0 2 0

9 South East Eagles 17 28 44 -16 15 4 1 10 2 1 1 1 0

Men 04
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Dunbar Rovers 39 57 33 24 18 13 0 5 0 0 0 0 0

2 UNSW FC Rangers 36 58 30 28 18 11 3 4 0 0 0 0 0

3 UNSW FC Casuals 31 43 36 7 18 10 1 7 0 1 0 1 0

4 Lokomotiv Cove 26 31 39 -8 18 7 5 6 0 0 0 0 0

5 Queens Park 23 35 47 -12 18 7 2 9 0 1 0 1 0

6 Coogee United 22 35 42 -7 18 6 4 8 0 0 1 0 0

7 Maroubra United 17 31 39 -8 18 5 2 11 0 0 0 0 0

8 South East Eagles 13 25 49 -24 18 4 1 13 0 0 1 0 0

Men 05
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Coogee United 50 96 10 86 16 15 1 0 2 0 1 0 0

2 Waverley Old Boys 39 61 29 32 16 11 2 3 2 0 0 0 0

3 South East Eagles 34 34 25 9 16 9 3 4 2 0 2 0 0

4 Randwick City 32 47 27 20 16 9 1 6 2 0 2 0 0

5 Lokomotiv Cove B 30 34 23 11 16 7 5 4 2 0 1 0 0

6 Lokomotiv Cove A 21 31 46 -15 16 5 2 9 2 2 0 2 0

7 Maroubra United 16 28 45 -17 16 3 3 10 2 1 1 1 0

8 Lions Football Club 15 23 61 -38 16 2 5 9 2 1 0 1 0

9 Queens Park 4 20 108 -88 16 0 0 16 2 3 0 3 0

Men 06
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Heffron Hawks 47 95 21 74 16 14 1 1 2 0 1 0 0

2 Pagewood Botany 39 45 44 1 16 11 2 3 2 0 0 0 0

3 South East Eagles 37 65 33 32 17 11 2 4 1 0 0 0 0

4 Kytherians 31 40 33 7 17 9 2 6 1 0 0 0 0

5 Maroubra United Gold 30 32 33 -1 16 8 2 6 2 0 0 0 0

6 Queens Park 21 23 42 -19 16 5 2 9 2 0 0 0 0

7 Lokomotiv Cove 20 31 45 -14 16 4 4 8 2 0 0 0 0

8 Maroubra United Green 11 25 57 -32 16 2 1 13 2 0 0 0 0

9 Mascot Kings Blue 6 12 60 -48 14 0 0 14 4 1 0 1 -2
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Men 07
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 UNSW FC 45 63 20 43 16 13 2 1 2 0 1 0 0

2 Pagewood Botany 41 53 18 35 16 12 1 3 2 0 0 0 0

3 Redfern Raiders 39 54 26 28 16 11 2 3 2 0 0 0 0

4 Dunbar Rovers 32 43 29 14 16 9 1 6 2 0 0 0 0

5 Lokomotiv Cove B 31 47 33 14 16 8 3 5 2 0 0 0 0

6 Heffron Hawks 24 40 41 -1 16 6 2 8 2 0 1 0 0

7 Lokomotiv Cove A 14 27 57 -30 16 3 1 12 2 0 0 0 0

8 South East Eagles 10 20 63 -43 16 1 3 12 2 0 0 0 0

9 Maroubra United 8 8 68 -60 16 1 1 14 2 2 0 2 0

O35 Championship Male
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Pagewood Botany 44 58 20 38 15 12 2 1 3 0 0 0 0

2 Glebe Wanderers 43 45 17 28 15 12 1 2 3 0 2 0 0

3 UNSW FC 29 43 37 6 16 7 4 5 2 0 1 0 0

4 Dunbar Rovers 28 30 27 3 15 6 4 5 3 1 0 1 0

5 Coogee United A 20 27 37 -10 15 3 5 7 3 0 0 0 0

6 Lokomotiv Cove 16 17 44 -27 16 3 3 10 2 2 0 2 0

7 Glebe Gorillas 8 19 57 -38 16 1 1 14 2 0 0 0 0

O35 02 Male
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Coogee United C 46 53 14 39 18 15 1 2 0 0 2 0 0

2 Coogee United B 44 47 22 25 18 14 2 2 0 0 0 0 0

3 Waverley Old Boys 30 49 37 12 18 9 3 6 0 0 2 0 0

4 Queens Park 28 52 39 13 18 8 4 6 0 1 1 1 0

5 Maroubra United 22 45 47 -2 18 6 4 8 0 0 0 0 0

6 Mascot Kings 18 27 46 -19 18 5 3 10 0 1 0 1 0

7 UNSW FC 15 38 58 -20 18 4 3 11 0 3 0 3 0

8 Randwick City Purple Hearts 3 3 51 -48 18 1 0 17 0 1 1 1 0

O45 Championship Male
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Dunbar Rovers 45 63 16 47 18 14 3 1 0 0 2 0 0

2 Pagewood Botany 37 47 27 20 18 11 4 3 0 0 2 0 0

3 Maccabi Hakoah 28 42 29 13 18 8 4 6 0 0 2 0 0

4 Maroubra United Green 26 33 45 -12 18 8 2 8 0 1 1 1 0

5 Mascot Kings 13 27 55 -28 18 4 1 13 0 3 0 3 0

6 South East Eagles 5 17 57 -40 18 1 2 15 0 3 0 3 0



O45 02 Male
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Coogee United 47 68 23 45 18 15 2 1 0 0 0 0 0

2 Easts FC 44 70 23 47 18 14 2 2 0 0 2 0 0

3 Dunbar Rovers 34 52 25 27 17 10 4 3 0 0 2 0 0

4 Queens Park 30 49 20 29 17 10 0 7 0 1 1 1 0

5 Maroubra United Gold 25 23 26 -3 18 7 4 7 0 0 0 0 0

6 Mascot Kings 10 23 55 -32 18 3 1 14 0 1 1 1 0

7 Redfern Raiders 9 18 51 -33 17 2 3 12 0 0 0 0 0

8 Randwick City 3 6 86 -80 17 1 0 16 0 4 0 4 0
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2022 PREMIERS AND LEAGUE CHAMPIONS – WOMEN

Competition Name Premiers Champions Runners-Up

Women's Premier League 
First Grade 2022

Coogee United Sydney University Coogee United

Women's Division 01 2022 Coogee United Dunbar Rovers Coogee United

Women's Division 02 2022 Coogee United Coogee United Sydney University

Women's Divison 03 2022 Coogee United South East Eagles Coogee United

Women's Division 04 2022 South East Eagles South East Eagles Coogee United

O30 Championship 2022 Coogee United Coogee United Dunbar Rovers

Women's Premier League First Grade
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Coogee United 53 67 1 66 17 17 0 0 1 0 1 0 0

2
Sydney University Soccer 
Football Club

32 30 26 4 17 10 0 7 1 0 0 0 0

3 Lokomotiv Cove 31 33 23 10 17 9 2 6 1 0 1 0 0

4 Dunbar Rovers 29 29 28 1 17 8 3 6 1 0 1 0 0

5 Maroubra United 28 32 35 -3 17 8 2 7 1 0 1 0 0

6 Easts FC 17 23 38 -15 17 4 3 10 1 0 0 0 0

7 Waverley Old Boys 13 22 43 -21 17 3 2 12 1 1 0 1 0

8 Randwick City 11 18 60 -42 17 3 0 14 1 3 0 3 0

Women 01
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Coogee United 49 55 7 48 16 15 0 1 2 0 0 0 0

2 Dunbar Rovers 35 43 15 28 15 10 1 4 2 0 2 0 0

3 Lions Football Club 31 27 18 9 13 8 1 4 4 0 2 0 -2

4 Queens Park 30 27 29 -2 16 8 2 6 2 0 1 0 0

5 Waverley Old Boys 28 29 14 15 16 7 3 6 2 0 1 0 0

6 Mascot Kings 27 29 26 3 17 7 4 6 1 0 1 0 0

7 Glebe Wanderers 25 32 31 1 16 7 0 9 2 0 1 0 0

8 Pagewood Botany 9 12 52 -40 17 2 1 14 1 2 0 2 0

9
Sydney University Soccer 
Football Club

7 5 67 -62 16 1 0 15 2 6 0 6 0



Women 02
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Coogee United 44 65 9 56 17 13 3 1 1 0 0 0 0

2 Heffron Hawks 43 69 15 54 17 13 2 2 1 0 0 0 0

3
Sydney University Soccer 
Football Club

36 38 16 22 17 10 4 3 1 0 1 0 0

4 Randwick City 27 28 21 7 17 7 4 6 1 0 0 0 0

5 Waverley Old Boys 21 21 30 -9 17 5 4 8 1 0 1 0 0

6 Maroubra United 12 21 37 -16 16 2 4 10 1 0 0 0 0

7 Lions Football Club 9 10 65 -55 17 2 1 14 1 0 0 0 0

Women 03
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Coogee United 41 62 15 47 18 13 2 3 0 0 0 0 0

2 South East Eagles 34 41 33 8 18 11 1 6 0 0 2 0 0

3
Sydney University Soccer 
Football Club

28 38 23 15 18 8 4 6 0 0 0 0 0

4 UNSW FC 28 40 30 10 18 9 1 8 0 0 0 0 0

5 Queens Park 25 26 23 3 18 7 4 7 0 0 0 0 0

6 Lions Football Club 0 9 92 -83 18 0 0 18 0 2 0 2 0

Women 04
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 South East Eagles 46 77 9 68 16 14 0 2 2 0 2 0 0

2 UNSW FC 38 82 18 64 15 11 1 3 2 0 1 0 0

3 Coogee United 36 52 30 22 16 10 2 4 2 0 2 0 0

4 Maroubra United 15 20 87 -67 15 3 0 12 3 0 2 0 0

5 Easts FC 7 17 19 -2 6 2 1 3 0 0 0 2 0

6
Sydney University Soccer 
Football Club

4 9 94 -85 16 0 0 16 2 7 0 7 0

O30 Championship Female
Pos Team P For Agst GD P W D L B FFT WBF LBF ADJ

1 Coogee United 52 84 3 81 18 17 1 0 0 0 1 0 0

2 Dunbar Rovers 31 49 25 24 17 10 1 6 0 1 0 1 0

3 Mascot Kings 30 30 29 1 17 9 3 5 0 0 0 0 0

4 Lokomotiv Cove 22 35 65 -30 18 7 1 10 0 1 0 1 0

5 Glebe Wanderers 15 18 54 -36 17 5 0 12 0 0 1 0 0

6 Randwick City 3 10 50 -40 17 1 0 16 0 0 0 0 0
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ASSOCIATION STATISTICS

PARTICIPATION BY SEASON
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PARTICIPANTS

2011 TO 2022
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The Board and staff of the Eastern Suburbs Football 

Association wish to thank our various and valuable 

partners for their support in developing the world game 

in the Eastern Suburbs.

Special Thanks:
Randwick City Council, Centennial Park and Moore Park Trust, Bayside Council, Municipality of Woollahra, Waverley 
Municipal Council, City of Sydney Council, Sydney FC, Federal Member for Kingsford Smith: Matt Thistlethwaite, 
Federal Member for Sydney: Tanya Plibersek, State Member for Coogee: Dr. Marjorie O'Neill, State Member 
for Maroubra: Michael Daley, Mayor of City of Randwick: Cr. Dylan Parker, Mayor of Waverley Council: Cr. Paula 
Masselos, Mayor of Woollahra Municipal Council: Cr. Susan Wynne City of Randwick South Ward: Cr Danny Said
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